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ROLFS.

Classic is always in style, and the Rolfs® brand of fashion

-

accessorics for men ep]tomlzes that timeless qual:ty}Tl'Q brand
is highly recogmzed for its exceptional sryle quality and value

~

Qur custom-designed SURPLUS® accessories offer customers innovation
and trend-right designs. Extensive trend research combined with unique

design detajls drive this brand, which encompasscs young men’s and boys’

belts, wallets And novelty gifts, t
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One of the most respectcd and well-known icons in the world introduces

accessories. The Dr. Martens}trademark look and quality has been recognized
worldwide since 1960 and sets the standard for durability, comfort and
fashion. Dr. Martens® is a way of thinking with no limits to your creativity.
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Contemporary styling in shoes, belts and leather accessories features a

jﬁhl J IUCCA

broad pal(:trte of rich colors, fine leathers and dynamic silhouettes. This

unique fashion statement offqis elaborate design details that add to the

originality of each and every ﬁiece. /




TIARA® by Princess Gardner is an eye-catching collection of retro-
influenced accessories. The styles are classic with a flair for the
contemporary. Sophisticated feminine silhouettes are combined with
bold geometric shapes in trendy, exotic materials.
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Classic is always in style, and the Rolfs® brand of fashion accessories for

women cpimmizfes,tha&impless quality. The brand is highly recognized
for its exceptional style, quality and value.
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DOCKERS
- WOMEN

M / : ."

personifies? Fun, casual and functional, Dockers® acces§qrics are ideal
| e v
for the got-it-together woman who is comfortable with herself and her

sense of fashion. '




To Qur Stockholders

For fiscal 2008, Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. reported a net loss
of $49.3 million, or $7.18 per share,
on net sales of $149.3 million. Fiscal
2007 net income was $1.9 million, or
$0.28 per diluted share, on net sales
of $195.8 million. The 2008 results
included certain charges and write-
downs of $36.5 million.

As of June 30, 2008, the Company's
balance sheet remained in solid
shape with cash of $2.9 million,
working capital of $53.3 million and
stockholders’ equity of $57.9 million
(book value per share of $8.21). Long-
term debt was $363,000, reflecting
seasonal financing needs.

Fiscal 2008 Review

Obviously, several well-publicized
factors combined to make fiscal 2008
a very challenging year for American
consumers. Gasoline as high as $4
per gallon, increased food and energy
prices, and the housing industry
woes all centributed to squeeze the
American consumer.

These factors had a direct impact

on our retail partners as consumers
cut back on spending. As a result,
retailers reduced their replenishment
inventory levels.

As the extent of these cutbacks
became evident, we took several
steps to bring our expense structure
in line with market conditions. These
measures included:

0 Closing our distribution facility
in West Bend, Wisconsin, with an
associated cost of $756,000.

0 Taking an inventory write-down of
$18.7 million for out-of-program
and stow-moving product lines.
These write-downs were taken on
all categories but were focused on
our belt and small leather goods
product offerings.

0 Reducing head count by 185
people, or about 20% of tatal
number of employees.

T Recording a noncash impairment
charge of $16.5 million for the
goodwill associated with previous
acquisitions.

W. Grady Rosier and J.5.B. Jenkins.

0 Sourcing most of our products from
lower-cost strategic suppliers.

Over the last 18 months, we have
reduced operating expenses by

$9 million and significantly reduced
the working capital needed to operate
the business.

During fiscal 2008, our Board of
Directors conducted a comprehensive
strategic review process exploring

all the ways in which we might
increase value for our stockholders.
We evaluated a range of alternatives
and options, including an in-depth
examination of a potential sale of the
Company. In the final analysis, we
determined that our best course of
action, given the state of the capital
markets and the outlook for the retail
industry, is to focus on improving our
core business.

There were several niotable sales and
marketing accomplishments in 2008
that may benefit financial results in
2009 and beyond. These include:

2 Introducing gifts and small leather
goods under the Goodyear license.

0 Establishing relationships with
T.J. Maxx and Marshall's, adding a
potential of more than 1,800 doors.




0 Adding the Rolfs brand men's small
leather goods at Koh!'s and Macy's
South, We also placed the Sonoma
women’s belt line at Kohl's.

O Placing women'’s leather products at
Macy’s Central under our Tiara by
Princess Gardner brand.

0 Launching the legendary
skateboarder Tony Hawk young
men’s belt program.

Management Changes

In February 2008, Britt Jenkins assumed
additional responsibilities as Chairman
of the Board along with his current
duties of President and Chief Executive
Officer. James Gaertner, our previous
Chairman, remains an active member
of the Board, and we thank Dr. Gaertner
for all of the contributions he made in
his 10 years as Chairman of the Board.

The Company announced that it

is looking to add a President/Chief
Executive Officer to its executive
management ranks, and that search
is ongoing as of the time of writing
this letter.

In December 2007, M.C. Mackey, CPA,
joined us as Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. Mackey comes to the Company
with 30 years of high-level financial
management experience, having
served as a CFO and in other senior
financial positions for both public and
private companies with annual sales
exceeding $600 million,

We also added William D. Summitt,
a private investor, to the Board of
Directors in October 2007, and the
Company has benefited from his
contributions over the past year.

Looking Ahead

As we enter fiscal 2009, many of

the pressures and uncertainties on
America’s consumers and retailers
continue. However, we believe that
most of our retail partners have cycled
through their inventory reduction
programs and that in most instances
our customers have stabilized at
current, albeit lower, inventory levels.
We frequently communicate with

our retail customers, gauging their
needs and identifying ways that Tandy
Brands can help them in this difficult
market environment.

Our primary business activities in
fiscal 2009 will focus on increasing
revenue. These efforts will include:

O Increasing the number of products/
categories with existing customers,
and we are off to a good start as we
are adding the Croft & Barrow ladies’
belt line at Kohl's.

0 Cross-marketing our women'’s
product lines where we already
have men's product lines
established, and vice versa.

0 Working aggressively with overseas
manufacturers to develop new
product categories that can be sold

effectively through our existing
distribution networks.

2 Gaining new customers through
our branded product offerings or
private label programs.

0 Signing new licenses for our leather
goods businesses. We recently
signed a license to manufacture
and sell a wide range of men’s,
women'’s, young men’s and juniors’
leather accessories under the
Dr. Martens brand, which gives us
another entrée into the important
youth and teen markets.

O Increasing distribution of our
totes gilts Lo mass merchants and
department stores.

We will continue to keep a close watch
on operating expenses, but feel that
most of the significant reductions were
taken in the last 18 months. We also
will have a keen focus on improving
our gross margins. Other gains should
result from our West Bend, Wisconsin,
and one of our Yoakum, Texas,
properties when they are sold.

In conclusion, fiscal 2008 was one of

the most difficult retail environments
that we have seen in decades.

Continued on page 4




We believe that our product quality,
commitment ta superior customer
service and long-term customer
relationships position us to better
weather today’s challenges. We are a
more agile, lower-cost organization
today and, when market conditions
improve, we expect to rebound
faster and see increased leverage
and improved profitability.

We thank you for your support
during this past year, and we look
forward to reporting on the progress
that we are making.

TSNS

J.S.B. Jenkins
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

W. Grady Rosier
Lead Independent Director
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including “Management's Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition And
Results Of Operations,” contains forward-looking statements regarding future events and our future results that are
subject to the safe harbors created under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” 'seeks, estimates,’ ''continues,”
“may,"” variations of such words, and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, In
addition, any statements that refer to projections of our future financial performance, our anficipated growth and
trends in our business, and other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking
statements. We have based these forward looking statements on our current expectations about future evenis,
estimates and projections about the industry in which we operate. These statements are not guarantees of future
performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Our actual results may
differ materially from those suggested by these forward-looking statements for various reasons, including those
identified under “Risk Factors” on page 10. Given these risks and uncertainties, you are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included in this report are made
only as of the date hereof. Except as required under federal securities laws and the rules and regulations of the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission, we do not undertake, and specifically decline, any obligation to
update any of these statements or to publicly announce the results of any revisions to any forward-locking
statements after the distribution of this report, whether as a result of new information, future events, changes in
assumptions, or otherwise.
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PART 1
ITEM 1 - BUSINESS

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to *we,” “our,” “us,” or the “Company” refer to Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. and its subsidiaries unless the context requires otherwise.

What do we do?

We are a leading designer and marketer of branded men’s, women’s and children’s accessories, including belts,
small teather goods, and gift accessories. Our product line also includes handbags and sporting goods. Our
merchandise is marketed under a broad portfolio of nationally recognized licensed and proprietary brand names,
including DOCKERS®, LEVI'S®, LEVI STRAUSS SIGNATURE™, TOTES®, ROLFS®, WOOLRICH®
CANTERBURY®, PRINCE GARDNER®, PRINCESS GARDNER®, AMITY®, COLETTA®, STAGG®
ACCESSORY DESIGN GROUP®, TIGER®, ETON®, SURPLUS®, EILEEN WEST™, GOODYEAR™, GENO
D'LUCCA™, DR. MARTENS®, and DR. MARTENS AIRWAIR®, as well as private brands for major retail
custorners. We sell our products through all major retail distribution channels throughout North America, including
mass merchants, national chain stores, department stores, men’s and women’s specialty stores, catalog retailers,
grocery stores, drug stores, golf pro shops, sporting goods stores, automobile and tire stores, and the retail exchange
operations of the United States military.

What significant business developments were there in fiscal 2008?

In fiscal 2008, we conducted a comprehensive strategic review exploring all the ways in which we might increase
value for our stockholders. We evaluated a range of alternatives and options, including an in-depth examination of a
potential sale of our Company as well as a number of potential acquisitions and other opportunities. In the final
analysis, we determined our best course of action, given the state of the capital markets and the outlook for the retail
industry, was to focus on improving our core business. The initiatives we are now focusing on are aimed at
allocating our resources towards increasing profitability and predictable and sustainable cash flows.

Due to the overall negative retail environment and general econornic conditions, we concluded there was a need to
reduce the amount of inventory warchoused and to focus on reducing total inventory levels within a shorter time
frame than had been our prior practice. We adopted an accelerated inventory flow program designed to improve
turns and reduce out-of-program and slow-moving inventory. In order to accelerate liquidation of this inventory and
significantly reduce total inventory levels, we recorded an $18.7 million noncash charge to cost of goods sold.
Noncash charges also were recorded for the impairment of goodwill ($16.5 million) and write off of intangible
customer lists ($1.3 million),




Other initiatives in fiscal 2008 included: completing the conversion of our men's accessories segment operations in
Yoakum, Texas into a receiving and distribution facility and transitioning belt manufacturing to lower-cost overseas
suppliers; closing our West Bend, Wisconsin distribution facility and moving its operations to facilities in Texas; and
making other personnel and restructuring changes. We also continued to seck higher end products and new
distribution channels which will enhance future operating results and entered into a license agreement for Dr.
Martens® and Dr. Martens Airwair® belts, wallets, and bags.

What are our product lines?

Our primary products, which we sell under proprictary, licensed, and private brand names, consist of belts and small
leather goods such as wallets. Qur products and their percentages of fiscal 2008 total net sales were:

Belts 58.8%
Small leather goods 19.3
Gift accessories 14.0
Handbags 1.0
Other products _69
100.0%

We are organized along men’s and women’s product lines with two reportable segments: (1) men’s accessories and
(2) women’s accessories. Men’s and boys’ products were 79.7% of our net sales in fiscal 2008 and women’s and
girl’s products were 20.3%. We also organize our customer relationship management functions along these same
product lines.

Belts

We, along with our predecessors, have manufactured and marketed belts for over 87 years, and belts remain our
largest single product category. In fiscal 2008, belt sales of $87.8 million represented 58.8% of our net sales. We
compete in all four categories of the belt market: casual, work, dress, and fashion.

Small Leather Goods
Qur small leather goods consist primarily of men’s and women’s wallets. Sales of small leather goods were $28.8
million, or 19.3% of our net sales in fiscal 2008.

Gift Accessories

We distribute a broad range of gift accessories, including products such as emergency kits, lights and radios, book
lights, beverage mugs, and tie racks. Gift accessories sales were $20.9 million, or 14% of our total net sales, in fiscal
2008.

Other Products

Other products we market are women’s handbags and sporting goods accessories which complement our core belt
and small leather goods products. Sales of other products were $11.8 million, or 7.9% of our net sales in fiscal 2008.

What brands do we sell?

Qur net sales by brand type in fiscal 2008 were (in rillions):

Type Net Sales

Private brands $ 821 54.9%

Proprietary brands 39.3 26.4

Licensed brands _ 279 18.7
31493

Private Brand Products

In fiscal 2008 private brand products accounted for $82.1 million, or 54.9% of our net sales. In a private brand
program we are responsible for designing and delivering unique products for select customers according to the
customer’s individual requirements. These programs offer our customers exclusivity and pricing control over their
products, both of which are important factors in the retail marketplace. We believe our flexible sourcing capabilities,




electronic inventory management and replenishment systems, and design, product development, and merchandising
expertise provide retailers with a superior alternative to direct sourcing of their private brand products,

Our principal private brand programs include those for leading retailers such as Wal-Mart, Target, and JC Penney, as
well as nationally recognized private brand names such as Faded Glory®, Meeting Street®, croft & barrow®, St.
John's Bay®, Mossimo®, Stafford®, and Alan Flusser®.

License Agreements

We have been awarded exclusive license agreements for several well recognized brands, includin Dockerso,
® ™ ® & ™ ® &

Levi’s™, Levi Strauss Signature’ , Woolrich™, Eileen West , and totes® gift accessories.

In fiscal 2009 we will begin delivering new products under license agreements for the following brand names:

e Geno " and Geno D'Lucca™ - exclusive right to market high end belts, small leather goods, sandals, and
other products in North America under this respected Mexican brand.

* Goodyear - nonexclusive right to market a gift line of The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company in the
United States, Canada, and Mexico.

e Dr. Martens® and Dr. Martens Airwair® - exclusive right to market, manufacture, import, and sell belts,
wallets, and bags in the continental United States and Canada under these well-known brands.

Generally our license agreements cover specific products and require us to pay royalties ranging from 3% to 10% of
net sales based on minimum sales quotas or sales. The terms of the agreements are typically three years, with
options to extend the terms, provided certain sales or royalty minimums are achieved. For fiscal 2008, sales of our
licensed products accounted for $27.9 million, or 18.7% of our net sales. Sales of totes™ gift accessories were $16.4
million, or 11.0% of our net sales. No sales associated with any other individual license agreement accounted for
more than 5% of net sales in fiscal 2008.

Proprietary Brands

In addition to our licensed and private brands, we market products under our own registered trademarks and trade
names. We own leading and well recognized trademarks such as Rolfs®, Amityg, Canterbury‘m, Tigerc’, Accessory
Design Group®, Prince Gardner®, Princess Gardner®, and ETON®. Net sales under our proprictary brands were
$39.3 million, or 26.4% of our net sales in fiscal 2008.

Distribution Of Our Key Brands
We sell our products to a variety of retail outlets, including:

Department stores E-commerce websites
Specialty chains National chain stores
Mass merchants Outlet stores

United States military retail exchange operations Sporting goods stores
Golf pro shops Individual specialty stores
Supermarkets Catalog retailers

Uniform stores Shoe stores

TV shopping networks Wholesale clubs

Drug stores Premium markets

Office supply stores Automobile and tire stores

Our key brands and each brand’s targeted distribution channels and primary products are:

Brand Distribution Channel Products
Dockers® National chain stores Belts

Department stores Handbags

Specialty stores Small leather goods
Levi's® National chain stores Belts

Department stores Small leather goods

Specialty stores
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Brand

Levi Strauss Signature”

Rolfs®

Canterbury®

Prince Gardner®

Princess Gardner®
Amity®

Coletta®

Accessory Design Group®™
Tiger®

Stagg‘m

ETON®

totes®

Surplus®

Eileen West"

™
Geno D'Lucca

Goodyear

Dr. Martens® and
Dr. Martens Airwair®

Distribution Channel

Mass merchants
National chain stores

National chain stores
Department stores
Specialty stores

Specialty stores
Golf pro shops

National chain stores
Specialty stores

National chain stores
Specialty stores

Mass merchants
National chain stores

Mass merchants
National chain stores

Mass merchants
National chain stores

Mass merchants
National chain stores

Mass merchants
Nationa! chain stores

Mass merchants
National chain stores
Department stores
Specialty stores

National chain stores
Department stores
Specialty stores

National chain stores

Department stores
Specialty stores

Department stores

Automobile and tire stores

Mass merchants

Specialty stores

Products

Belts
Small leather goods
Casual multipurpose bags

Small leather goods

Belts
Small leather goods

Small leather goods

Small leather goods

Small leather goods

Handbags

Belts
Women’s accessories

Belts

Belts
Small leather goods

Gift accessories

Gift accessories

Belts
Small leather goods
Gift accessories

Belts
Small leather goods
Handbags

Belts
Small leather goods
Sandals

Gift accessories

Belts
Wallets
Bags

Two of our product lines also are sold through our e-commerce web sites: Rolfs® at www.rolfs.net and Sport Beads
at www.sport-beads.com.




Who are our customers?

We maintain strong relationships with various major retailers throughout North America, including:

Department Stores National Chains Mass Merchants
Kohl’s JCPenney (U.S. and Mexico) Wal-Mart (U.S., Canada and Mexico)
Belk Stein Mart Target
Bon-Tor/Carson’s AAFES Fred Meyer
Federated Stores Casual Male Shopko

Dillard’s Academy Sports & Outdoors Zellers (Canada)
Boscov's Tractor Supply Big Lots

The Bay (Canada) Marshall’s Pamida
Gottschalk’s Goody's

Stage Moore’s (Canada)

Peebles T.J. Maxx

Wal-Mart accounted for 41% and 45% of our net sales in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively. No other customer
accounted for 10% or more of our total net sales. In fiscal 2008 and 2007 our top ten customers accounted for 76%
and 77%, respectively, of net sales.

How do we maintain strong customer relations?

We believe our success is due in large part to our design expertise, long-term customer relationships, strong sales
and marketing organization, and superior customer service. Factors which help facilitate these characteristics
include our quick response distribution, vendor inventory management services, electronic data interchange
capabilities, and expertise in the communication of fashion and lifestyle concepts through product lines and
innovative point-of-sale presentations. We develop and manage our accounts through the coordinated efforts of
senior management, regional managers, account executives, and an organization of salespeople and independent
sales representatives.

We maintain in-store customer service relationships with various specialty stores, national chain stores, and major
department stores. We have a team of 92 sales associates in the United States and 11 sales associates in Canada.
These sales associates are organized on a regional basis and supervised by regional sales managers. Sales associates
are responsible for overseeing accounts within a defined geographic territory, developing and maintaining business
relationships with their respective customers, preparing and conducting product line presentations, and assisting
customers in the implementation of programs at the individual store level. In addition, sales associates may,
depending on the needs of an individual customer, assist in the maintenance and presentation of merchandise on the
selling floor. Our regional sales organization is supported by account executives.

How do we merchandise and develop our products?

Our product development and merchandising professionals work closely with our licensors, suppliers, and customers
to interpret market trends, develop new products, and create comprehensive merchandising programs consisting of
packaging, point-of-sale, fixturing, and presentation materials. Qur senior managers maintain business relationships
with customers’ buyers and merchandise managers and plan, develop, and assist with implementing specific
merchandising programs for their accounts. Senior managers also develop and propose comprehensive programs
relating to product mix, pricing, and fixturing, and they assist customers’ buyers and merchandise managers in the
implementation of these programs. We coordinate the implementation of marketing programs through the efforts of
senior and regional managers. We believe our internal design ability represents a significant competitive advantage
because, in our opinion, retail customers have become increasingly reliant on the design and merchandising expertise
of their suppliers.




What is our competitive position?

Competition in the fashion accessories industry is intense. The accessories market is highly fragmented and we
believe we are one of the largest competitors in the accessories industry. In our opinion, growth in the sectors of the
accessories industry we serve has resulted from:
¢ trends toward more casual attire which has increased demand for accessories outside the traditional dress
category;
¢ increased consumer awareness of branded accessories as a fashion and lifestyle statement; and
o adesire for newness and change in accessories styles.

As a result of consolidation in the retail industry, retailers have increasingly chosen to consolidate their suppliers to a
core group of companies that have the resources and expertise to meet the retailers’ increasing demands. We believe

we are well positioned to continue to capitalize on these market trends.

Qur primary competitors are:

Product Category Competitors

Men’s and boys’ belts Swank, Randa/Humphreys, Cipriani, and Fossil

Men’s wallets Buxton, Randa/Humphreys, Mundi, Fossil, Swank, and Cipriani
Men’s gifts E&B, Merchsource, Excalibur, JLR, and Mundi

Women’s and girls’ belts Cipriani, Circa, Accessory Network, Chambers, and Fossil
Women’s small leather goods Buxton, Mundi, Fossil, Relic, and Nine West

We compete on the basis of our design expertise, customer service, brand recognition, product quality, and price.
We believe our ability to compete successfully is based on our long-term customer relationships, superior customer
service, strong naticnal brand portfolio, national distribution capabilities, proprietary inventory management systems,
flexible sourcing, and product design and innovation.

How do we seek to grow our business?

We seek to increase our sales and earnings through a variety of means, including organic growth from increased
sales by our current operating units, as well as growth through new products and license agreements and the
acquisition of assets and similar businesses. Since our incorporation in Delaware on November 1, 1990, we have
acquired numerous businesses. In the future, we may make additional acquisitions that complement our business and
are accretive to our earnings.

Where and how are our products produced?

We have strong relationships with a number of high-quality, low-cost forcign manufacturers who provide products
manufactured to our specifications. Most of our products are manufactured by third-party suppliers in China, the
Dominican Republic, India, Italy, Mexico, and Taiwan, with only a small percentage manufactured in Canada and
the US. In fiscal 2007, we manufactured 34% of the men’s belts we distributed primarily at our Yoakum, Texas
facility which has been converted into a distribution center. In fiscal 2008, Superior Leather Limited and Best
Development Company were the two largest suppliers of our products. Because a number of companies could
manufacture our products, we do not believe we are exposed to any potentially significant disruption of product flow.




Is our business seasonal?

Our quarterly sales and operating results have a seasonal increase in the fall (our first and second fiscal quarters).
Quarterly net sales and our pretax (loss) income, as percentages of the totals for fiscal 2008 and 2007, were:
First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Net sales
Fiscal 2008 26.4% 33.2% 20.2% 20.2%
Fiscal 2007 292 329 19.3 18.6
Pretax (loss) income
Fiscal 2008 (6.2)% (81.5)% (4.9)% (7.4Y%
Fiscal 2007 142.1 171.0 (7L.1) (142.0)

The fiscal 2008 second quarter includes noncash charges of $36.5 million, or 79.2% of the quarter’s pretax loss.
Are we subject to governmental regulations?

Most of our products are manufactured outside of the United States. Accordingly, foreign countries and the United
States may from time to time modify existing quotas, duties, tariffs, or import restrictions, or otherwise regulate or
restrict imports in a manner which could be material and adverse to us. In addition, economic and political
disruptions in Asia and other parts of the world from which we import goods could have an adverse effect on our
ability to maintain an uninterrupted flow of products to our customers.

Due to the fact that we sell our products to the retail exchange operations of the United States military, and thus are a
supplier to the federal government, we must comply with all applicable federal statutes. Historically we have not
made any material modifications or accommodations as a result of government regulations.

How many employees do we have?

As of Jhune 30, 2008, we employed 767 people, of which 568 were full time employees. We believe employee
relations are generally good.

What role does intellectual property play in our business?

We believe our trademarks, licenses to use certain trademarks, and our other proprietary rights in and to intellectual
property are important to our success and our competitive position. We seek to protect our designs and intellectual
property rights against infringement and devote resources to the establishment and protection of our intellectual
property on a nationwide basis and in selected foreign markets. Our trademarks remain valid and enforceable as
long as the marks are used in connection with our products and services and the required registration renewals are
filed.

What are our working capital practices?

We do not enter into long-term agreements with any of our suppliers or customers. Instead we enter into a number of
purchase order commitments for each of our lines every season. Due to the time required by our foreign suppliers to
produce and ship goods to our distribution centers, we attempt, based on internal estimates, to carry on-hand
inventory levels necessary for the timely shipment of initial and replenishment orders for men’s and women’s
accesseries. A decision by a customer’s buyer for a group of stores or any significant customer, whether motivated
by competitive conditions, financial difficulties, or otherwise, to significantly change the amount of merchandise they
purchase from us, or to change the manner of doing business with us, could have a significant effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. We attempt to mitigate this exposure by selling our products to a variety of retail
customers throughout North America.

Where can investors access additional information about Tandy Brands?

Our website address is www.tandybrands.com. Information about our corporate governance, including our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics, is available on our website. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, Forms 3, 4, and 5 filed by our officers, directors, and stockholders holding
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10% or more of our common stock, and all amendments to those reports are available free of charge through our
website as socon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™). You also may read and copy any reports, proxy statements, or other
information that we file with the SEC at the SEC’s public reference room at 100 F Street N.W., Washington, D.C.
20549, Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the operation and location of the
public reference room. Our SEC filings also are available to the public free of charge at the SEC’s website at
WWW._SCC. 20V,

ITEM 1A - RISK FACTORS

In evaluating our business you should carefully consider the risk factors discussed below in addition to the other
information in this Annual Report. Any of these factors could materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations, and financial condition. These factors are provided for investors as permitted by the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. 1t is not possible to identify or predict all such factors and, therefore, you should not
consider theses risks to be a complete statement of all the uncertainties we face.

Risks Relating To Our Business
A significant portion of our sales is attributable to a few major customers.

Ten customers accounted for 76% of our fiscal 2008 net sales, including Wal-Mart which accounted for 41% of our
net sales. A decision by Wal-Mart or any other major customer, whether motivated by competitive conditions,
financial difficulties or otherwise, to significantly change the amount of merchandise purchased from us, or to change
the manner of doing busingss with us, could have a significant effect on our results of operations and financial
position. We attempt to mitigate this exposure by selling our products to a variety of retail customers throughout
North America.

We do not maintain long-term contracts with our customers and are unable to control their purchasing
decisions.

Like most companies in our industry, we do not enter into long-term contracts with our customers. As a result, we
have no contractual leverage over their purchasing decisions. A determination by a major customer to decrease the
amount of products it purchases or to discontinue carrying our products could have a material adverse effect on our
operations.

Direct sales to customers by suppliers could negatively impact our sales.

Certain third-party manufacturers have increasingly marketed and sold products to retailers directly, instead of
through companies such as ours. We believe we provide significant value-added services through our design
programs and our ability to tailor products for specific customers and demographic groups; however, if our
customers decide to increase their level of purchases directly from third-party manufacturers, our sales could be
negatively impacted.

We extend unsecured credit to our customers and are subject to potential financial difficulties they may face,

We extend credit to our department and retail store customers based on an evaluation of their financial condition and
generally do not require collateral from our customers. If a customer experiences financial difficulties, we may need
to curtail our sales to that customer or be subject to increased risk of nonpayment. If we are unable to collect our
accounts receivable from a distressed customer, our operating results would be negatively impacted.

The loss of certain of our license agreements could result in the loss of significant sales.
Our fiscal 2008 net sales included $27.9 million of licensed brand name sales, including $16.4 million of totes® gift
accessories. If we fail to comply with the terms of our license agreements, or to protect against infringement, such

failure could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, certain of our license agreements require
minimum royalty payments, regardless of the level of sales of the licensed products. In the event royalty
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commitments under these agreements exceed the revenues generated by sales of the licensed products, our operating
results would be negatively impacted.

Distribution problems could delay product shipments.

QOur inventory management and product distribution processes are highly dependent on the computer hardware and
software which support these functions. Extended electric power, telecommunication, or internet outages, or a
catastrophic loss of the hardware and software, could preclude timely delivery of products to our customers and
result in a loss of sales.

The loss of, or problems with, third-party manufacturers could adversely impact our operations.

Most of our products are manufactured by independent, third-party suppliers in China, the Dominican Republic,
India, Italy, Mexico, and Taiwan. We have no long-term contracts with these manufacturers and conduct business on
a purchase-order basis. We compete with other companies for the production capacity and facilities of these
manufacturers. Qur future success depends on our ability to maintain relationships with our current suppliers and to
identify other suppliers and develop relationships with those who can meet our quality standards. If our quality
standards are compromised, our customer relationships could be negatively affected.

Our business is dependent on our ability to maintain proper inventory levels.

In order to meet the demands of our customers, we must maintain certain levels of inventory of our products. If our
inventory levels exceed customer demand, we may be required to write-down unsold inventory or sell the excess at
discounted or close-out prices. Such actions could significantly impact our operating results and financial condition,
and could result in the diminutton of the value of our brands. If we underestimate consumer demand for our products
or if we are not able to obtain products in a timely manner, we may experience inventory shortages. If we are unable
to fill customer orders, our relationships with our customers could be damaged and our business could be adversely
affected. See “Our business is highly subject to consumer preferences and fashion trends” below.

Price increases by our suppliers could negatively affect our operating results.

Most of our products are purchased from third-party suppliers. If our suppliers increase their prices, and we are not
able to increase our selling prices, our gross margin and operating results would be materially impacted.

Risks Relating To Our Industry
Our business is highly subject to consumer preferences and fashion trends.

Our industry is driven largely by fashion trends and consumer preferences and our success is dependent on our
ability to anticipate and respond to these factors, While we devote considerable time and resources to gauging
consumer, lifestyle, and fashion trends which affect the accessories market, any failure on our part to identify and
respond to relevant trends could adversely affect acceptance of our products and brands and adversely impact our
sales. If we fail to properly gauge fashion and consumer trends, we could be faced with a significant amount of
inventory which might only be sold at distressed prices. See *Qur business is dependent on our ability to maintain
proper inventory levels” above.

Our industry is highly competitive and subject to pricing pressures that could adversely affect our financial
position.

The accessories industry is highly fragmented and highly competitive. We compete with numerous manufacturers,
importers, and distributors who may have greater resources and our results of operations and market position may be
adversely affected by our competitors and their competitive pressures. In addition, from time to time, we must adjust
our prices to respond to industry-wide pricing pressures. Our financial performance could be negatively impacted by
these pricing pressures if we are forced to reduce prices and cannot also reduce procurement costs, or if our
procurement costs increase and we cannot increase our prices.
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Our industry is highly subject to economic cycles and retail industry conditions.

Our business is highly subject to general economic cycles and retail industry conditions. When general economic
conditions are lower, consumers are often hesitant to use discretionary income to purchase fashion accessories. Any
significant declines in general economic conditions or uncertainties regarding future economic prospects that may
affect consumer spending habits could adversely affect our business.

Consolidation in the retail industry may negatively impact our operations.

There has been a significant amount of consolidation in the retail industry in recent years. This consolidation may
result in factors which could negatively impact our business, such as:

® store closures;

® increased customer leverage over suppliers, resulting in lower product prices or lower margins;

® tighter inventory management on the part of the customer, resulting in lower inventory levels and decreased
orders; and

®*  a preater exposure to customer credit risk,

Risks Relating To International Operations
We source most of cur products from foreign countries.

Our transactions with our foreign manufacturers and suppliers are subject to the risks of deing business abroad,
including potential political and economic distuptions. Imports into the United States could be affected by, among
other things, the cost of transportation and imposition of import duties and restrictions. The United States, Canada,
China, and other countries in which our products are manufactured could impose new quotas, tariffs, or other
restrictions, or adjust presently prevailing quotas, duty, or tariff levels, which could affect our operations and our
ability to import products at current or increased levels.

Fluctuations in foreign currencies could adversely impact our financial condition.

We generally purchase our products in transactions utitizing U.S. dollars. Because we acquire most of our products
from foreign countries, the cost of those products may be impacted by changes in the value of the currency of the
source country. Changes in the value of the Chinese Yuan, in particular, may have a material impact on our costs
due to our reliance on Chinese manufacturing operations. Changes in the currency exchange rates may also affect
the relative prices at which we and our foreign competitors sell products in the same market.

Risks Relating To Our Company

Our business depends on a limited number of key personnel with whom we do not have employment
agreements. The loss of any one of these individuals could disrupt our business.

Our continued success is highly dependent upon the personal efforts and abilities of our executive officers. We do
not have employment contracts with, or maintain key-person insurance on the lives of, any of these officers, and the
loss of any one of them could disrupt our business.

We are dependent on the creative talent of our designers and the effectiveness of our sales personnel.

Sales of our products are highly dependent on their marketplace acceptance, which is driven by current styles and
fashion trends, and our marketing abilities. If we were unable to hire and retain employees having exceptional
creative talent and marketing skills, our sales would be adversely affected.

The requirements of complying with the Exchange Act and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act may strain our resources.

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) and the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxley Act”). These requirements may place a strain on our resources. The
Exchange Act requires that we file with the SEC annual, quarterly, and current reports about our business and its
financial condition and results of operations. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we
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maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures, corporate governance standards, and internal controls over
financial reporting. In the future, Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that our documentation and testing
of our internal control over financial reporting be audited by our independent public accounting firm,

ITEM 1B - UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2 - PROPERTIES

We own and lease facilities in the United States and lease facilities in Canada and Hong Kong. We believe our
properties are adequate and suitable for the particular uses invoived. The following table summarizes our properties:

Form of
Facility Location Use Ownership
Yoakum, Texas - 4 facilities M Office and distmbution of men's accessories Own
West Bend, Wisconsin Warehouse held for sale and leased to third parties Own
Scarborough, Ontario, Canada Manufacture and distribution of men's accessories Lease
Dallas, Texas Distribution of women’s accessories Lease
Arlington, Texas Corporate offices Lease
New York, New York Office and showroom Lease
Kowloon, Hong Kong Office Lease

™ One of the Yoakum, Texas facilities is under contract for sale with expected closing in October 2008.
The total space we owned, leased, and occupied as of June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Square Feet

Owned Leased Total
Warehouse and office 559,000 219,000 778,000
Factory - 27,000 27,000
Total 559,000 246,000 805,000

ITEM 3 - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not involved in any material pending legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to
our business.

ITEM 4 - SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.
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PART II

ITEM 5 - MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

What is the principal market for our common stock?
The principal market for our common stock is The NASDAQ Global Market where it is listed under the symbol

“TBAC.” The high and low sales prices for our common stock for each quarterly period within the two most recent
fiscal years as reported on NASDAQ were:

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007
Quarter Ended High Low High Low
September 30 $13.15 $10.12 $11.68 $ 927
December 31 $11.86 $ 79 $12.36 $ 973
March 31 $ 9.66 $ 4.50 $13.70 $11.21
June 30 $ 6.99 $ 382 $13.29 $10.63

How many common steckholders do we have?
As of September 17, 2008 we had approximately 619 stockholders of record.
Did we declare any cash dividends in fiscal 2008 or the prior fiscal year?

We declared and paid the following dividends:

Dividend
Declaration Date Record Date Payable Date Per Share
Fiscal 2008
August 13, 2007 September 28, 2007 October 19, 2007 $0.04
October 29, 2007 December 31, 2007 January 18, 2008 $0.04
February 4, 2008 March 31, 2008 April 18, 2008 $0.04
April 21, 2008 June 30, 2008 July 18, 2008 $0.04
Fiscal 2007
August 16, 2006 September 30, 2006 October 20, 2006 $0.0275
October 16, 2006 December 29, 2006 January 19, 2007 $0.0275
January 31, 2007 March 30, 2007 April 20, 2007 $0.04
April 17, 2007 June 29, 2007 July 20, 2007 $0.04

On August 19, 2008, our board of directors declared a dividend of $0.04 per share payable on October 17, 2008 to
stockholders of record as of September 30, 2008, The payment of dividends in the future will be at the discretion of
our board of directors and will depend on our profitability, financial condition, capital needs, future prospects,
contractual restrictions, and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. In addition, payment of any
future dividends requires the approval of our lender, in its sole discretion, pursuant to the terms of our credit facility.

How many shares of common stock are authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans?

The following table provides information regarding the number of shares of our cominon stock that may be issued
on exercise of outstanding stock options or purchased by employees under our existing equity compensation plans
as of June 30, 2008. These plans are:

» 1997 Employee Stock Option Plan;

s Nonqualified Formula Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors;

« 2002 Omnibus Plan;

» 1995 Stock Deferral Plan for Non-Employee Directors;

» Stock Purchase Program; and

» Nonqualified stock option agreements with certain nonemployee directors.
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(A) (B) ©

Number of Securities Number Of Securities Remaining
To Be Issued upon Weighted-Average Available For Future Issuance
Exercise Of Exercise Price Of Under Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options, Qutstanding Options, Plans (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants And Rights Warrants And Rights Reflected In Column (A))
Equity Compensation
Plans Approved by 519,909 $11.65@ 758,498 @
Stockholders
Equity Compensation
Plans Not Approved 15,000 % $ 6.09 -
by Stockholders
Total 534,909 $11.49 @ 758,498

T Includes options to purchase common stock under the following plans:

2

&

@

* 1997 Employee Stock Option Plan - 236,850 shares;
* Nonqualified Formula Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors - 40,685 shares; and
* 2002 Onmnibus Plan - 240,197 shares.

Also includes 2,177 shares of common stock issuable on setttement of phantom stock units under the 1995
Stock Deferral Pian for Non-Employee Directors.

Excludes up to 116,770 performance units which are payable in shares of our commeon stock following the
end of the July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2009 performance cycle if we achieve the maximum performance goal.
We do not anticipate any payout under these awards.

Calculation of weighted-average exercise price does not include phantom stock units credited to participants’
accounts under the 1995 Stock Deferral Plan for Non-Employee Directors because they have no exercise
price.

Includes 26,198 shares of common stock issuable under the 1995 Stock Deferral Plan for Non-Employee
Directors and 508,026 shares of common stock issuable under the 2002 Omnibus Plan, of which up to
116,770 shares are issuable following the end of the July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2009 performance cycle if we
achieve the maximum performance goal (we do not anticipate any payout under these awards). Upon
adoption of the 2002 Omnibus Plan, the number of shares authorized and reserved for issuance under our
previously existing stock option plans were transferred to the 2002 Omnibus Plan and are presently authorized
and reserved for issuance under that plan. All shares of common stock authorized and reserved for issuance
on the exercise of outstanding stock options under our previous stock option plans and the 2002 Omnibus
Plan will, on the cancellation or expiration of any such stock options, automatically be authorized and
reserved for issuance under the 2002 Omnibus Plan.

Also includes 224,274 shares of common stock issuable under the Stock Purchase Program. The Stock
Purchase Program is open to all full-time employees who have been employed at least six months, but less
than one year, or who have been employed one year or more and are contributing to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. Employees Investment Plan. Under the Stock Purchase Program participants may contribute
5% or 10% of their earnings and we match 25% or 50% of each participant’s contribution depending on their
length of employment and other considerations. The Stock Purchase Program purchases treasury stock, if
available, or unissued common stock directly from our Company at monthly average market prices. The
shares are fully vested upon purchase and the participant may withdraw from the Stock Purchase Program at
any time. The shares purchased under the Stock Purchase Program are distributed to participants annually.

Stock options to purchase an aggregate of 15,000 shares of common stock under nonqualified stock option
agreements for nonemployee directors dated October 16, 2001 with Dr. James F. Gaertner (4,250), Gene
Stallings (4,250), Roger R. Hemminghaus (2,500), and Colembe M. Nicholas {4,000). These options became
fully vested six months after the grant date and expire on October 16, 201 1.
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Did our Company repurchase any shares of common stock during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008?

The following table provides information about repurchases of shares of common stock made by us during the
quarter ended June 30, 2008. The shares were purchased in the open market and are held in a rabbi trust established .
under our Benefit Restoration Plan.

Total Number Of Maximum Number
Total Shares Purchased Of Shares That May
Number Average As Part Of Publicly  Yet Be Purchased As
Of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Part Of The Plans
Period Purchased Per Share Or Programs Or Programs
April 1, 2008 to April 30, 2008 802 $4.43 N/A N/A
May 1, 2008 to May 31, 2008 - - N/A N/A
June 1, 2008 to June 30, 2008 740 4,94 N/A N/A
Total 1,542 4.68 N/A N/A

ITEM 6 - SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable.

ITEM 7 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Item 7 should be read in the context of the information included elsewhere in this Annual Report including our
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes in Item 8 of this Annual Report.

OVERVIEW

Our Company and our corresponding customer relationships are organized along men’s and women’s product lines.
As a result we have two reportable segments: (1) men’s accessories, consisting of belts, wallets, gift accessories,
small leather accessories, and sporting goods; and {2) women’s accessories, consisting of belts, wallets, and gift
accessories.

Net sales for fiscal 2008 were impacted by the overall negative retail environment and general economic conditions,
including curtailed replenishment orders by one of our largest customers, which led us to conclude there was a need
to reduce the amount of inventory warehoused and to focus on reducing total inventory levels within a shorter time
frame than had been our prior practice, We recorded an $18.7 million noncash charge to cost of goods sold in order
to accelerate liguidation of out-of-program and slow-moving inventory and significantly reduce total inventory
levels. Noncash charges also were recorded for the impairment of goodwill ($16.5 million) and write off of
intangible customer lists ($1.3 million). For the year, we had a net loss of $49.3 million, or $7.18 per share. In
fiscal 2007, we had net income of $1.9 million, or $0.28 per diluted share.

16




The following presents sales and gross margin data for our reportable segments (in thousands of dollars). Other
financial information about our segments is incotporated herein by reference to Note 9 of the notes to consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report.

2008 Decrease 2007

Net sales:
Men's accessories $118,949  (15.1)%  $140,072
Women's accessories 30,308 (45.6) 55,737

2149257  (23.8) $195.809

Gross margin:

Men's accessories $ 30,364 (40.3)% § 50,835
Women's accessories 2286 (879 19.019

§.32,000 (53.3) 3 69,854

Gross margin percent of sales:

Men's accessories 25.5% 36.3%
Women's accessories 7.6 34.1
Total 219 35.7

Our sales are generally affected by changes in demand for our product categories (volume) as well as customer
allowances and returns. Sales volume also can impact our gross margins in terms of product mix between mass
merchant retailers, which typically sell product at lower price points than department stores, and specialty retailers.
The components of our cost of goods sold and selling, general and administrative expense (“SG&A”) are described
in Note 2 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report and incorporated
herein by reference. We include the costs related to our distribution network in SG&A while others may include all
or a portion of such costs in their cost of goods sold. Consequently, our gross margins may not be comparable to
others.

The following presents product line net sales by each of our segments (in thousands of dollars).

2008 Men's Women's Total
Belts $ 76,265 64.1% § 11,557 38.1% § 87,822 58.8%
Small leather goods 12,790 10.8 15,964 52.7 28,754 19.3
Gift accessories 19.821 16.7 1,089 3.6 20,910 140
Handbags - - 1,497 49 1,497 1.0
Other products 10.673 85 201 0.7 10,274 6.9
$118.949 330308 £149.257
2007
Belts $ 90,605 64.7% $ 27399 492% §$113,004 60.3%
Small leather goods 17,473 12.5 22,608 40.6 40,081 20.5
Gift accessories 19,664 14.0 825 1.5 20,489 10.4
Handbags - - 3,087 5.5 3,087 1.6
Other products 12,330 88 1,818 3.2 14,148 7.2
$140,072 £.55,737 £195,.809




The following presents our SG&A and depreciation and amortization expenses by segment, and our interest expense
(in thousands of dollars).

Increase
2008 (Decrease) 2007

Selling, general and administrative expense:

Men's accessories $42,008 0.1)%  $42,293
Women's accessories 14.596 (22.8) 18.911

530,604 (7.5) £61.204

Depreciation and amortization:

Men's accessories $ 2,234 (31.0Y%  § 3,237
Women's accessories 968 (34.5) 1.478
$3200 (32.1) 3 4715

Interest expense $_1.394 13.7% $ 1,226

Operationally, the most significant challenge in fiscal 2008 was maintaining gross margins and controlling SG&A
expenses as net sales for fiscal 2008 declined 23.8% from the fiscal 2007 level. A slowdown in replenishment orders
from one of our largest customers which impacted our fiscal 2007 fourth quarter results, continued to affect our
results until the latter part of fiscal 2008. The effect of the dramatic rise in gasoline prices on general economic
conditions impacting the retail environment also affected our sales and margins as our customers curtailed their
purchases and sought price reductions.

To reduce the amount of inventory warchoused and to focus on reducing total inventory levels within a shorter time
frame than had been our prior practice, we adopted an accelerated inventory flow program designed to improve turns
and reduce out-of-program and slow-moving inventory, We marked down all out-of-program and slow-moving
inventory to our best estimate of the market value we anticipate we will be able to realize based on our experiences
selling through inventory liquidation channels. We expected that reducing the prices for these items would enable us
to liquidate much more inventory than we would have under our previous pricing. Although we believe the out-of-
program and slow-moving inventory would continue to be saleable over the long term at previously marked down
prices, the new philosophy and valuation methodology is driven by decisions to reduce overall inventory levels and
sell large quantities of out-of-program and slow-moving inventory as quickly as possible. In fiscal 2008 we had
higher than expected margins on initial sales of the marked-down inventory; however, we estimate the marked-down
amounts are in line with our expectations for selling the remaining out-of-program and slow-moving inventory in
fiscal 2009. Actwal amounts realized from this marked-down inventory may differ from our estimates and such
differences could have a material impact on our future results of operations, cash flows, and financial position,

2008 COMPARED TO 2007

Net Sales And Gross Margins
Our $149.3 million fiscal 2008 net sales were 23.8% lower than the prior year and our 21.9% gross margin was 13.8
percentage points lower, of which 12.5 percentage points is attributable to the inventory write-down.

Men’s accessories segment net sales of $118.9 million in fiscal 2008 were 15.1% below the $140.1 million in fiscal
2007 as economic conditions slowed retailers’ sales of belts and small leather goods. Curtailed levels of
replenishment orders from one of the largest customers of our men’s accessories segment resulted in $13.2 million
fewer men’s belt sales during fiscal 2008. Net sales of small leather goods were $4.7 million lower this year
compared to last year as one of our department store customers shifted to a new private label and away from our
Rolfs wallet program.

Women's accessories segment net sales of $30.3 million in fiscal 2008 were 45.6% below the $55.7 million in fiscal
2007. The difficult retail environment, competitive market pressures, and continued weakening of women’s fashion
accessory trends resulted in $15.9 million fewer sales of belts and $6.6 million fewer sales of small leather goods.
The lower belt sales include the $13.0 million effect of a customer discontinuing its fashion belt program.

Gross margins for each of our segments generally were lower as the result of lower sales and the $18.7 million
inventory write-down. The margin percentage of net sales for our men’s accessories segment in fiscal 2008 was 10.8

percentage points lower than fiscal 2007, including the 8.1 percentage point effect of the segment’s $9.6 mitlion
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inventory write-down. The women’s accessories segment fiscal 2008 margin percentage was 26.5 percentage points
lower than fiscal 2007, including a $9.1 million inventory write-down having a 30 percentage point affect on the
segment’s margin.

Our gross margin percentages also are affected by direct shipments as they have lower gross margins because these
goods are shipped from our suppliers to our customers and are not handled in our distribution centers, thereby
reducing the general and administrative costs related to the sales. Any material changes in sales mix, such as higher
mass merchant accessory sales or direct shipments, could lower our gross margin percentages during a particular
season.

Operating Expenses

Fiscal 2008 SG&A expenses were $4.6 million, or 7.5% lower, than fiscal 2007 due primarily to the women’s
accessories segment having lower payroll, distribution costs, and royalty expense. Fiscal 2008 includes $1.]1 million
in restructuring costs (closing West Bend, Wisconsin distribution facility - $756,000; terminating staff at other
locations - $128,000; remaining rent under a lease for a vacated office - $184,000; other initiatives - $21,000).
Fiscal 2007 SG&A expenses included $762,000 related to transitioning our Yoakum, Texas manufacturing
operations to overseas suppliers and other severance costs. The following were the more significant expense
reductions in fiscal 2008 compared to the prior year (in thousands):

Contract labor $1,234
Market value of compensation plans' investments 731
Distribution costs 516
Travel 328
Advertising 298
Legal 275

Increased investor relations expenses ($313,000) related to our annual meeting and directors’ share-based
compensation {$288,000) partially offset the expense reductions.

The fiscal 2008 compensation for our executive officers did not increase significantly as, based on our 2007 financial
performance, our board of directors determined that for fiscal 2008 (1) our President and Chief Executive Officer’s
salary would remain at the prior year level, (2) salary increases for our other executive officers would be minimal,
(3) equity compensation awards would not be granted to our executive officers, and (4) no bonuses would be paid to
our executive officers.

Fiscal 2008 operating expenses include charges of $17.8 million for the impairment of our men’s accessories
segment goodwill ($16.5 million) and customer lists ($1.3 million) as we significantly revised projections of our
future operating results in light of changing business conditions and lower fiscal 2008 sales.

Interest, Other Income, And Taxes

Interest expense for fiscal 2008 includes $196,000 of costs related to a debt covenant waiver we received for the first
quarter and $176,000 related to costs previously capitalized for the credit facility with our previous lenders. Other
income includes interest and royalty income and, in fiscal 2007, a $440,000 gain from the sale of the rights to use
one of our trademarks in Mexico.

As a result of the net loss in fiscal 2008, we will receive an estimated $1.2 million tax refund after filing our tax
return, Approximately $9.4 mitlion of the fiscal 2008 loss will be available to reduce taxable income through 2028,
Our effective income tax rate was 7% in fiscal 2008 and 40.7% in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008, the benefit of the 34%
federal statutory rate applied to our pretax loss was offset by a deferred tax valuation allowance (31.2%) and
goodwill impairment (8.7%) which is not tax deductible. The valuation allowance was recorded as our operating
results over the past three years and revised projections of future operating results do not currently indicate it is more
likely than not our deferred tax assets will ultimately be realized. The 40.7% effective tax rate in fiscal 2007 was
greater than the statutory rate due to state income taxes and expense deduction limitations which accounted for 3.8%
and 2.9% of the difference, respectively.

19




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our operating activities provided cash of $5.6 million in fiscal 2008 compared to $9.1 million in fiscal 2007. This
difference is due to decreases in accounts receivable and inventories which provided cash of $19.3 million in fiscal
2008 while their increases in fiscal 2007 used cash of $6.6 million. Due to the timing of inventory purchases for the
fall and the holiday season, accounts payable decreased $6.2 million in fiscal 2008 and increased $6.9 million in
fiscal 2007. To bridge the timing gap between inventory purchases and collection of accounts receivable, our credit
facility provides us with funds on a revolving basis. In fiscal 2008 periodic borrowings totaled $41.9 million and
repayments totaled $47.6 million. In fiscal 2007, periodic borrowings totaled $32.1 mitlion and repayments totaled
$40.1 million.

Capital expenditures for property and equipment of $594,000 were sharply below the $2.2 million in fiscal 2007
which was primarily in support of inventory management, other computer related functions, and sales office
remodeling. The property and equipment expenditures in fiscal 2007 were partly offset by $500,000 in proceeds
from selling the rights to use one of our trademarks in Mexico.

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operating activities and our credit facility which we believe can
provide adequate financial resources for our future working capital needs. Other financing activities in fiscal 2008
included $907,000 from the sale of common stock to employees through our stock purchase program and the
exercise of stock options. Based on the strength of our balance sheet, we increased our quarterly dividend rate
45.5% from $0.0275 to $0.04 per share beginning with the fiscal 2007 fourth quarter payment. We paid dividends
totaling $1,112,000 and $838,000 in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Information about our credit facility is incorporated herein by reference to Note 5 of the notes to consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report. At June 30, 2008 we had $363,000 in outstanding
borrowings and could borrow an additional $18.9 million. As our borrowings increase for the procurement of fall
and holiday season inventory, we may need to request modifications to the eligible inventory and accounts receivable
borrowing limitations under our credit facility for part of the first half of fiscal 2009.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We use estimates throughout our consolidated financial statements. We consider an accounting estimate to be
critical ift (1) the estimate requires us to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time the
estimate is made or (2) changes in the estimate are reasonably likely to accur from period to period, or use of
different estimates that we reasonably could have used in the current period, would have a material impact on our
financial condition or results of operations. We have discussed the development and selection of these critical
accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our board of directors. In addition there are other items within
our financial statements that require estimation, but are not deemed critical as defined above. Changes in estimates
could have a material impact on our operations and financial position.

The accounting policies and estimates we consider most critical are presented below.

Revenues And Accounts Receivable Allowances

Sales are recognized when merchandise is shipped and title to the goods has passed to the customer. We record
allowances, including cash discounts, in-store customer allowances, cooperative advertising allowances, and
customer returns, as a reduction of sales based upon historical experience, current trends in the retail industry, and
individual customer and product experience. Actual returns and allowances may differ from our estimates and
differences would affect the operating results of subsequent periods.

Sensitivity Analysis The following table presents the estimated effect of the indicated increase (decrease} in our
sales, based on fiscal 2008 net sales of $149.3 million, on our allowance for doubtful accounts (in thousands except
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per share amounts). Changes in general economic conditions, trends and developments within our industry, or
situations unique to specific customers could result in significant fluctuations in the actual effects of these estimates.

Sales Allowances Earnings

Change Reserves Expense Per Share
Change in customer allowances and returns ~ +/-  0.5% $746/5(746) $746/8(746) $(0.07)/80.07
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts ~ +/- (.125 187/ (187) 187/ (187) (0.02)/ 0.02

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cast (principally standard cost which approximates actual cost on a first-in,
first-out basis) or market. Cost includes the direct cost of purchased products and, for manufactured products,
materials, direct and indirect labor, and factory overhead. Market, with respect to raw materials, is replacement cost
and, with respect to work-in-process and finished goods, is net realizable value. In our assessment of the value of
inventory, we monitor the accumulation of excess inventory at the end of each season. Our assessment is both a
quantitative measurement (e.g., the use of metrics such as the number of months supply on hand) and qualitative
measurement (e.g., the ability to utilize certain styles in current and future programs). In general we have
relationships with off-price store customers that will purchase ¢xcess inventory at discounted prices and we have
been able to realize values at or above the lower of cost or market values at which we carry our inventories. If
circumstances arise in which the market value of items in inventory declines below cost, an inventory markdown is
estimated and charged to expense in the period identified. If we incorrectly anticipate these trends or unexpected
events occur, our results of operations could be materially affected. We closely monitor fashion trend items and
anticipate additional inventory markdowns if market indications justify further markdowns.

Sensitivity Analysis The effect of a 1% write down in the value of our June 30, 2008 inventory would be (in
thousands except per share amounts):

Percentage Earnings
Of Inventory Inventory Expense Per Share
Change in inventory markdown -1% $(355) $355 $(0.03)

Uncertain Tax Positions

Beginning in fiscal 2008, tax liabilities, together with interest and applicable penalties, are recognized for the
benefits of uncertain tax positions in the financial statements which more likely than not may not be realized as
required by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes,” (“FIN No. 48”), a clarification of the accounting in accordance with FASB Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” We review the appropriateness of items of revenue
or expense excluded or included in our tax returns and the requirements for filing returns with jurisdictions which
may have laws requiring us to file tax returns. Failure to recognize a tax Hability for the benefits of an uncertain tax
position which ultimately is not realized could materially affect our financial position and results of operations,

Share-Based Compensation

The fair values of restricted stock and performance unit grants are estimated to be the market price of our common
stock on the grant dates and, for performance units, reduced by the present value of estimated future dividends, The
assumptions we use to estimate the fair value of our stock options are based on historical information and current
economic conditions. OQur estimated fair values would be greater if the expected dividend yield was decreased and
the other assumptions were increased. Neither the grant-date market values of our stock nor the resulting output of
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using our assumptions may be the value ultimately realized by our directors
and employees or accurately measure the tax benefits we may realize.

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The information in Note 2 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report
is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 7A - QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable.
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ITEM 8 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows, and stockhelders’
equity for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a rcasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. and subsidiaries at June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the

consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective July 1, 2007 the Company adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.”

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas
September 18, 2008
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Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc, And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment

Other assets:
Goodwill
Intangibles
Other assets
Total other assets

Liabilities And Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Accrued expenses
Note payable
Total current liabilities

Other liabilities:
Supplemental executive retirement obligation
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities
Total other liabilities

Commitments

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, none issued
Common stock, $1.00 par value, 10,000 shares authorized,
7,049 shares and 6,912 shares issued and outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Other comprehensive income
Shares held by Benefit Restoration Plan Trust
Total stockholders' equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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June 30

2008 2007
$ 2,855 $ 4,076
22,147 31,357
35,535 64,372
- 3,454
8.783 3.879
69,320 107,138
5,382 10,548
- 16,361
3,069 4,882
1,617 1,734
4,686 22977
379,388 $140.663
$10,312 $ 16,903
1,985 2,420
3,376 4,019
363 6,069
16,036 29,411
1,893 1,587
- 389
3581 1,369
5,474 3,345
7,049 6,912
34,840 33,616
15,337 66,967
1,666 1,326
(1,014) {914}
57.878 107,907
879,388 £140,663




Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements Of Operations
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Year Ended June 30
2008 2007
Net sales $149.257 $195,809
Cost of goods sold 97,872 125,955
Inventory write-down 18,725 -
116,597 125,955
Gross margin 32,660 69,854
Selling, general and administrative expenses 56,604 61,204
Depreciation and amortization 3,202 4,715
Goodwill and other intangibles impairment 17,774 -
Total operating expenses 77,580 65,919
Operating (loss) income (44,920) 3,935
Interest expense (1,394) (1,226)
Other income 237 550
{Loss) income before income taxes 46,077) 3,259
Income taxes 3211 1,325
Net (loss) income 5(49,288) 21934
(Loss) earnings per common share $ (7.18) § 029
(Loss) eamnings per common share assuming dilution $ (7.18) § o028
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 0.6 $ 0.135
Common shares outstanding 6,863 6,720
Common shares outstanding assuming dilution 6,863 6,891

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements Of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended June 30
2008 2007

Cash flows provided by operating activities:
Net (loss) income $(49,288) $ 1,934
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Inventory write-down 18,725 -
Goodwill and other intangibles impairment 17,774 -
Depreciation and amortization 3,237 4 879
Stock compensation expense 249 447
Amortization of debt costs 315 170
Excess income tax benefit from stock option exercises 9 (30)
Deferred income taxes 3,074 {913)
Other 738 289
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 9,210 (4,035)
Inventories 10,112 (2,602)
Other assets (2,328) 1,559
Accounts payable (6,233) 6,946
Accrued expenses 66 457
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,642 9,101
Cash flows used for investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment {554) (2,204)
Proceeds from trademark sale - 500
Net cash used for investing activities {594) (1,704)
Cash flows used by financing activities:
Stock sold to stock purchase program 840 1,059
Stock options exercised 67 356
Dividends paid (1,112) (838)
Change in cash overdrafts (358) {149)
Proceeds from borrowings 41,911 32,143
Borrowing repayments (47.617) {40.074)
Net cash used by financing activities (6.269) (7.503)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {1,221 (106)
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 4,076 4,182
Cash and cash equivalents end of year 3 2835 $ 4,076
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 859 $ 1,153
Income taxes paid $ 545 $ 2,868

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. And Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements Of Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands except per share amounts)

Balance June 30, 2006

Comprehensive income:
Net income

Currency translation adjustments

Cash dividends declared - $0.135 per share
Stock sold to Stock Purchase Program
Stock options exercised
Share-based compensation
Benefit Restoration Plan Trust shares purchased
Balance June 30, 2007
Uncertainty in income taxes accounting change
Comprehensive (loss):

Net (loss)

Currency translation adjustments

Cash dividends declared - $0.16 per share
Stock sold to Stock Purchase Program

Stock options exercised

Share-based compensation

Benefit Restoration Plan Trust shares purchased
Balance June 30, 2008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shares Held
Additional Other By Benefit Total
Commen Stock Paid-In  Retained Comprehensive Restoration Stockholders'

m Capital  Earnings Income Plan Trust Equity
6,795 $6,795  $31911 $65,960 $ 988 3 (815) $104,839
- - - 1,934 - - 1,934

- - - - 338 - 338
2212
- - - (928) - - (928)

90 90 969 - - - 1,059

34 34 322 - - - 356
7 (M 414 1 - - 408
_ - - - - - 9 (99
6,912 6,912 33,616 66,967 1,326 (914} 107,907
- - - (1,225) - - (1,225)
- - - (49,288) - - (49,288)

- - - - 340 - 340
(48,948)
- - - (1,120) - - (1,120)

113 H3 727 - - - 840

g 8 59 - - - 67

16 16 438 3 - - 457
- - - - - _ (100 100
7,049 7,049 334840  $15337 $1.666 1,014 $§ 57,878




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Overview

The Company

We are a leading designer and marketer of branded men’s, women’s and children’s accessortes, including belts,
small leather goods, and gift accessories. Our product line also includes handbags and sporting goods. Our
merchandise is marketed under a broad portfolio of nationally recognized licensed and proprietary brand names, as
well as private brands for major retail customers. We sell our products through all major retail distribution channels
throughout North America, including mass merchants, national chain stores, department stores, men’s and women'’s
specialty stores, catalog retailers, grocery stores, drug stores, golf pro shops, sporting goods stores, automobile and
tire stores, and the retail exchange operations of the United States military.

Basis Of Presentation

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires the use of estimates that affect the reported value of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses.
These estimates are based on historical experience and various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for cur conclusions. We continually evaluate the information
used to make these estimates as the business and economic environment changes. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Such differences could have a material impact on our
future financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are
wholly owned. Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional! currency for our foreign subsidiary is the Canadian dollar. Its assets and liabilities are translated into
U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at each balance sheet date, and resulting translation gains or losses are
accumulated in other comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Revenue and
expenses are translated at year-to-date average exchange rates.

Financial Instrument Fair Values

Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash, trade receivables and payables, and our credit facility. The
carrying values of cash and trade receivables and payables are considered to be representative of their respective fair
values. Our credit facility bears interest at floating market interest rates; therefore, the fair value of amounts
borrowed approximate their carrying value.

Note 2 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash And Cash Equivalents
We consider cash on hand, deposits in banks, and short-term investments with original maturities of less than three
months as cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable And Allowances

We perform periodic credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and reserve against accounts deemed
uncollectible based upon historicat losses and customer specific events. After all collection efforts are exhausted and
an account is deemed uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. Credit losses have
historically been within our expectations and we generally do not require collateral.

Allowance account transactions, including deductions for returns and uncollectible accounts written off net of
recoveries, were (in thousands):

Beginning Charged To Ending
Fiscal Year Balance Expense Deductions Balance
2008 £ 943 $9,540 $9,312 1,171
2007 1,598 8,138 8,793 943
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (principally standard cost which approximates actual cost on a first-in,
first-out basis) or market. Cost includes the direct cost of purchased products and, for manufactured products,
materials, direct and indirect labor, and factory overhead. Market, with respect to raw materials, is replacement cost

and, with respect to work-in-process and finished goods, is net realizable value. Inventories consist of (in
thousands):

June 30
_2008 2007
Raw materials $ 2,545 $3,288
Work-in-process 148 235
Finished goods 32,842 60,345

835,535 264,372
Property And Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation calculated using the straight-line method
(in thousands):

June 30
2008 2007 Depreciation Rates
Buildings $ 4,171 $ 8,514 3%
Leasehold improvements 3,232 3,139 Lesser of lease term or asset life
Machinery and equipment 24,996 27,275 10% to 50%
32,399 38,928

Accumulated depreciation (27.017) (28.380)

$ 5,382 $10.548

Depreciation expense: 2008 - $2,723; 2007 - $4,168

Property and equipment included in other current assets at June 30, 2008 having a net book value of §3.1 million is

held for sale without expectation of incurring a loss; however, amounts actually realized may differ from our
estimates.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Renewals and betterments which materially prolong the
useful lives of the assets are capitalized. The cost and related accumulated depreciation of assets retired or sold are
removed from the accounts and gains or losses are recognized in operations.

Intangibles And Impairment Of Long-Lived Assets
Finite-lived intangibles are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

We review long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset might be impaired. Recoverability of assets to be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to undiscounted future net cash flows they are
expected to generate. If the undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount, the impairment recognized is
measured by the amount the carrying value of the assets exceeds their fair value.

Derivative Instruments And Hedging Activities

Our risk management policy relating to derivative investments is to mitigate, subject to market conditions, against
interest rate risk. We do not enter into derivative investments for the purpose of speculative investment. Qur overal
risk management philosophy is re-evaluated as business conditions change.
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Sales

Sales are recognized when merchandise is shipped and title to the goods has passed to the customer. We record
allowances, including cash discounts, in-store customer allowances, cooperative advertising allowances, and
customer returns, as a reduction of sales based upon historical experience, current trends in the retail industry, and
individual customer and product experience. Actual returns and allowances may differ from our estimates and
differences would affect the operating results of subsequent periods.

Costs And Expenses

Cost of goods sold includes our costs associated with the procurement and manufacture of inventory, such as the cost
of inventory and raw materials purchased from overseas, costs of shipping from our suppliers, ticketing and labeling
of product and, where applicable, labor and overhead related to our product manufacturing facilities. Selling,
general and administrative expenses (“SG&A™) include our costs related to activities incurred in the normal course
of business which are not associated with the procurement or production of inventory. They also include costs
associated with our distribution centers (2008 - $14,612,000; 2007 - $15,128,000). Those amounts include shipping
and handling expenses (2008 - $2,731,000; 2007 - $3,120,000).

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs, consisting primarily of shows and conventions as well as display and print advertising, are
expensed as they are incurred (2008 - $1,907,000; 2007 $2,205,000).

Share-Based Compensation
Compensation expense for all share-based payments expected to vest is recognized on the straight-line basis over the
requisite service period based on grant-date fair values.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the future income tax effects of differences in the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting and income tax return purposes using enacted tax laws and rates. A
valuation allowance is recognized if it is more likely than not that some or all of a deferred tax asset may not be
realized. Tax liabilities, together with interest and applicable penalties included in the income tax provision, are
recognized for the benefits of uncertain tax positions in the financial statements which more likely than not may not
be realized.

A $1.2 million liability was recognized as of July 1, 2007, with a corresponding reduction in retained earnings,
resulting from the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” (“FIN No. 48™), a clarification of the accounting in accordance with FASB
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities,” ("SFAS 159™) which permits choosing to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option is elected are reported in earnings. We are
currently assessing the potential impact of adopting SFAS 159 which is effective for our fiscal 2009,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 137, “Fair Value Measurements,” ("SFAS 157"} which defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements
required under other accounting pronouncements, but does not change existing guidance for carrying instruments at
fair value. It also establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes information used in developing assumptions when
pricing an asset or liability. FASB Staff Position No. 157-2 issued in February 2008 allows us to delay application
of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements at least annually, until the first quarter of our fiscal 2010.
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Note 3 - Significant Events

Fiscal 2008 Inventory Write-Down, Intangibles Impairment, And Restructuring Charges

Due to the overall negative retail environment and general economic conditions, we concluded there was a need to
reduce the amount of inventory warehoused and to focus on reducing total inventory levels within a shorter time
frame than had been our prior practice. We adopted an accelerated inventory flow program designed to improve
turns and reduce out-of-program and slow-moving inventory. In order to accelerate liquidation of this inventory and
significantly reduce total inventory levels, we recorded an $18.7 million noncash inventory write-down.

We have marked down all out-of-program and slow-moving inventory to our best estimate of the market value we
anticipate realizing based on our experiences selling through inventory liquidation channels. We expected that
reducing the prices for these items would enable us to liquidate much more inventory than we would have under our
previous pricing. Although we believe the out-of-program and slow-moving inventory would continue to be saleable
over the long term at previously marked down prices, the new philosophy and valuation methodology is driven by
decisions to reduce overall inventory levels and sell large quantities of cut-of-program and slow-moving inventory as
quickly as possible. In fiscal 2008 we had higher than expected margins on initial sales of the marked-down
inventory; however, we estimate the marked-down amounts are in line with our expectations for selling the
remaining out-of-program and slow moving inventory in fiscal 2009. Actual amounts realized from this marked-
down inventory may differ from our estimates and such differences could have a material impact on our future results
of operations, cash flows, and financial position.

Noncash charges also were recorded by our men’s accessories segment for the impairment of goodwill ($16.5
million) and write off of intangible customer lists {$1.3 million) as the result of assessing the segment’s fair value,
which was determined to be less than its carrying value using a discounted cash flow analysis, and comparing the
carrying amount of the customer lists to undiscounted future net cash flows they were expected to generate. The
assessments were triggered by changing business conditions and reduced sales, including curtailed replenishment
orders for belts from one of our largest customers, resulting in significantly revised projections of future operating
results.

Restructuring charges, included in SG&A, were incurred relating to closing our distribution center in West Bend,
Wisconsin ($756,000), terminating staff in other locations ($128,000), paying the remaining rent obligation under a
lease for a vacated office ($184,000), and other restructuring initiatives ($21,000).

Fiscal 2007 Manufacturing Facility Conversion, Severance Costs, And Trademark Sale

Our men's accessories manufacturing facility in Yoakum, Texas was converted into a receiving and distribution
facility following its cessation of belt manufacturing on June 30, 2007. SG&A includes $762,000 related to
transitioning the facitity’s manufacturing operations to lower-cost overseas suppliers and other severance costs.

We recognized a $440,000 gain included in other income from the sale of rights to use one of our trademarks in
Mexico.

Note 4 - Goodwill And Intangibles

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill were (in thousands):

June 30, 2006 - Accumulated amortization - $6,594 $16,292
Currency translation adjustment 69

June 30, 2007 - Accumulated amortization - $6,670 16,361
Currency translation adjustment 114
Impairment (16,473)

June 30, 2008 e -
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The following tables present information about the cost we have allocated to finite-lived intangible assets we

acquired as part of business acquisitions (in thousands).

2008 2007
Gross carrying amount $6,730 $9,330
Accumulated amortization (3.661) (4.448)
$3,069 14,882
2008 Weighted-Average Life
Balance Expense Total Remaining
Trade names $3,050 $316 20.7 9.7
Customer lists - 178 - -
Other 19 _20 11.4 1.5
$3,069 §514 20.5 9.3

Amortization expense: 2008 - $514; 2007 - $711
Estimated annual amortization expense: next four years - $315; fifth year - $290

The customer lists and goodwill of our men’s accessories segment were written-off in fiscal 2008 as the result of
assessments of their future cash flows in light of changing business conditions which resulted in significantly revised
projections of future operating results,

Note 5 - Credit Arrangements

On February 12, 2008, we entered into a new credit facility for borrowings and letters of credit up to a maximum of
$35 million based on accounts receivable and inventory levels. At June 30, 2008, we had outstanding borrowings
under the facility of $363,000 bearing interest at 5.25%, outstanding letters of credit totaling $3.8 million, and $18.9
million borrowing availability. Borrowings under the facility, which are due on the facility’s expiration date in 2010,
bear interest at the lender’s prime rate plus 0.25% or LIBOR plus 2.75% as designated by us. Outstanding
borrowings under our prior facility at June 30, 2007 were $6.1 million bearing interest at a 6.45% weighted-average
rate.

The credit facility is guaranteed by substantially all of our subsidiaries and is secured by substantiatly all of our
assets and those of our subsidiaries. It requires the maintenance of a tangible net worth financial ratio which, if not
met, could adversely impact our liquidity, The facility contains customary representations and warranties and we
have agreed to certain affirmative covenants, including reporting requirements. The facility also limits our ability to
engage in certain actions without the lender’s consent, including, repurchasing Company common stock, entering
into certain mergers or consolidations, guaranteeing or incurring certain debt, engaging in certain stock or asset
acquisitions, paying dividends without the lender’s approval, making certain investments in other entities, prepaying
debt, and making certain property transfers.

Our Canadian subsidiary has a CAD $1 million credit facility (direct advances limited to US $830,000) secured by
its cash, credit balances, and deposit instruments with interest at the lender’s prime or US base rates. There have
been no borrowings under this line of credit.

As our borrowings increase for the procurement of fall and holiday season inventory, we may need to request
modifications to the eligible inventory and accounts receivable borrowing limitations under our credit facility for
part of the first half of fiscal 2009.

Interest expense includes amortization of debt origination costs incurred in connection with our credit facilities over
the periods of the facilities (2008 - $139,000; 2007 - $170,000) and costs in fiscal 2008 related to the credit facility
with our previous fenders (debt covenant waiver - $196,000; write-off of previously capitalized costs - $176,000).
At June 30, 2008 the remaining debt origination costs to be amortized were $277,000.
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Note 6 - Commitments

We lease office, warehouse, and manufacturing facilities under noncancelable operating leases expiring through the
year 2013 with varying renewal and escalation clauses. Our rental expense in fiscal 2008 and 2007 totaled
$2,365,000 and $2,577,000, respectively.

We have licensing agreements with other companies to use their trademarks on our products. Royalty expense in
fiscal 2008 and 2007 related to these agreements totaled $2,670,000 and $2,702,000, respectively.

As of June 30, 2008, future payments under our leases, including additional rents under escalation clauses, and
minimum royalty commitments were (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Rent Rovalty
2009 $2,076 $ 941
2010 1,116 597
2011 596 420
2012 468 515
2013 251 198
34,507 32,671

Note 7 - Share-Based Compensation

Omnibus Plan

The Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. 2002 Omnibus Plan (“Omnibus Plan™), approved by our stockholders in 2002,
is designed to attract and retain the services of key management employees and members of our board of directors
through the granting of incentive stock options (other than to directors), nonqualified stock options, performance
units, stock appreciation rights, or restricted stock. Restricted stock and stock option awards under the Omnibus
Plan and prior stock option plans have a maximum contractual life of ten years and specific vesting terms and
performance goals are addressed in each equity award grant. All shares available for grant under our prior plans
have been transferred to the Omnibus Plan and are authorized and reserved for issuance under the Omnibus Plan.
All shares of common stock presently authorized and reserved for issuance on the exercise of stock options or
vesting of restricted stock will automatically be authorized and reserved for issuance under the Omnibus Plan on
their cancellation, forfeiture, or expiration. At June 30, 2008, there were 508,026 shares of common stock available
for future grants which includes up to 116,770 shares issuable pursuant to performance unit awards following the end
of the July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2009 performance cycle if we achieve the maximum performance goal (we do not
anticipate any payout under these awards).

The Omnibus Plan provides that, when a nonemployee director is first elected or appointed to our board of directors,
the director will be awarded 4,060 shares of restricted stock. The Omnibus Plan also provides that on or about the
beginning of each fiscal year, each continuing nonemployee director will be awarded shares of restricted stock
(Chairman of the Board - 4,200 shares; each other director - 3,000 shares). If the board so elects, an alternative form
of award with a substantially equivalent value, other than an incentive stock option, may be granted in lieu of
restricted stock.

A committee of nonemployee members of our board of directors may grant awards to directors and employees.
Shares issued to satisfy awards may be from authorized but unissued common stock, treasury stock, or shares
purchased on the open market. Currently we issue new shares.

Awards Granted

Restricted Stock *Restricted stock awards are not transferable, but bear rights of ownership including voting and
dividend rights. Awards to our nonemployee directors vest annually at a rate of one-third per year, beginning one
year after the grant date. However, upon the death, disability, resignation, or termination of a nonemployee director,
that director’s shares become fully vested. Consequently, there is no requisite service period and the fair value of the
awards is expensed on the award date. Restricted stock awarded to employees either cliff vests on the three-year
anniversary of the award or vests at a rate of one-third per year. The requisite service periods are either the vesting
period or the total period over which multiple-tranche awards vest. Although there are no performance requirements
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related to the vesting of restricted stock awarded to employees, they must be continually employed through the
vesting period. We estimate the fair value of restricted stock awards to be the market price of our common stock on

the award date.
Weighted-Average

Number Grant-Date

Of Shares Fair Value
Nonvested June 30, 2007 61,606 $11.60
Granted 28,260 11.76
Vested (22,892) 13.22
Forfeited (7.164) 10.57
Nonvested June 30, 2008 59,810 11.18

Restricted stock fair values on the vesting dates in fiscal 2008 and 2007 were $237,000 and $244,000, respectively.

Stock Options Stock options granted to our nonemployee directors are nonqualified and become fully vested six
months after the grant date, the requisite service period. Options granted to employees vest annually at a rate of one-
third per year, beginning one year after the grant date, and have a three-year requisite service period. Other than
incentive stock option grants to certain executive officers prior to 1999, employees have been granted nonqualified

options,

The exercise prices of our stock options are the grant-date market values of our common stock. Their fair value is
estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model. That model is used to estimate the fair value of traded options
that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions. Because our stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded
options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect fair value estimates, in our
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of our stock
options.
Weighted-Average
Remaining Aggregate
Number  Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Of Shares Price Term Value

Outstanding June 30, 2007 639,892 $11.69
Exercised (7,500) 7.62
Forfeited and cancelled (99,660} 13.08
QOutstanding June 30, 2008 332,732 11.49
Vested and expected to vest 532732 11.49 4.0 Years -
Exercisable 515.405 11.52 3.9 Years -

Options Exercised

2008 2007
Total intrinsic value $25,000 § 86,000
Cash received 57,000 326,000
Realizable tax benefit 9,000 32,000

Performance Units Performance units awarded to employees are payable in shares of our common stock following
the end of the July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2009 performance cycle based on our return on noncash assets varying from
0% to 150% of the 6.73% return on noncash assets target payout. Employees vest in the portion of units earned
equal to the months employed during the cycle upon death, disability, or normal (age 65) or early {(age 55 and 15
years service) retirement; otherwise, units do not vest until the end of the cycle and we do not anticipate any payout
under these awards. Unit fair values are estimated based on the market price of our common stock on the award date
reduced by the present value of estimated future dividends.
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Weighted-Average

Number Grant-Date
Of Shares'" Fair Value
Outstanding June 30, 2007 137,184 $11.44
Forfeited (20.414) 11.07
Outstanding June 30, 2008 116,770 11.50
Vested and expected to vest - -
M Assuming maximum payout.

The weighted-average fair value of performance units granted in fiscal 2007 was estimated using risk-free interest
rates of 4.62% and 4.77% and dividend yields of 1% and 1.3% (1.1% weighted average).

Expense Share-based compensation expense of $463,000 and $381,000 was recognized in fiscal 2008 and 2007,
respectively, together with income tax benefits of $171,000 and $141,000, respectively. Unrecognized expense of
$39,000 remained at June 30, 2008 to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.3 years. The number of
stock options and performance units expected to vest in determining compensation expense to be recognized were
estimated based on employment termination, option forfeiture patterns, and actual and estimated returns on noncash
assets.

Note 8 - Employee Benefit Plans

Our total contributions to our 401(k) Plan, Stock Purchase Program, and Benefit Restoration Plan were $952.000
and $971,000 in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively.,

401(k) Plan Our Employees Investment Plan is open to substantially all of our full-time employees who have
completed one year of service. Eligible employees may contribute up to 25% of their annual compensation to the
401(k) Plan on a pretax basis. We, at our discretion, match 100% of employee contributions up to 5% of
compensation. The 401(k) Plan allows participants to direct the investment of both employee and matching
employer contributions from a variety of investment alternatives, one of which is our common stock,

Stock Purchase Program Our Stock Purchase Program (“Program™) is open to all full-time employees who have
been employed at least six months, but less than one year, or who have been employed one year or more and are
contributing to the 401(k) Plan. Under the Program participants may contribute either 5% or 10% of their eamings
and we match 25% or 50% of each participant’s contribution depending on their length of employment and other
considerations. Excluding the right to assign, alienate, pledge, or otherwise encumber their accounts, participants
immediately vest in all contributions to their accounts which are invested in our common stock. The Program
purchases treasury stock, if available, or unissued common stock directly from us at monthly average market prices.
The shares purchased under the Program are distributed to participants annually.

Benefit Restoration Plan Our Benefit Restoration Plan (“BRP”) is a nonqualified deferred compensation plan to
restore retirement benefits for a select group of our management and highly compensated employees who are eligible
to make contributions to the 401(k) Plan, but whose contributions to the 401(k) Plan are reduced due to limitations
imposed by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. For any plan year, participants may elect to defer, on a
pretax basis, between 1% and 10% of their annual compensation, reduced by their total contributions to the 401(k)
Plan during the year. Participants may direct the investment of their contributions in various investment alternatives,
including our common stock. We make quarterly matching cash contributions to the BRP on the participant’s behalf
equal to 150% of the amount the participant deferred during the quarter, up to a maximum of 5% of the participant’s
annual compensation. OQur matching contributions are required to be invested in our common stock, or as we
otherwise determine. All benefit payments from the BRP are made in cash either in a lump sum or monthly
installments over a period not exceeding ten years. Our liability associated with the BRP is included in other
liabilities (2008 - $505,000; 2007 - $1,023,000).

Acknowledgment and Release Agreement The officer who was the only actively employed participant in the
Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) when it was terminated in September 2005 entered
into an Acknowledgment and Release Agreement (“Agreement™), a defined contribution agreement. The Agreement
entitles the officer to (1) the funds in the rabbi trust (“Trust”} we established to set aside amounts to assist in
satisfying our obligations under the SERP and (2) an additional $331,000 for each of the fiscal years 2006, 2007,
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and 2008 which have been accrued on our books together with interest at a rate per year equal to our cost of
borrowing. Our liability under the Agreement at June 30, 2008 and 2007 was $1,893,000 and $1,587,000,
respectively. The investments in the Trust included in other assets are carried at market value ($834,000 and
$903,000 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively). These funds, together with the 1,058,000 liability exceeding
the Trust assets” market value we contributed to the Trust in July 2008, wiil continue to be invested under the terms
of the Trust. The officer has elected payment of his benefits in a lump sum after his termination of employment with
the Company.

Note 9 - Disclosures About Segments Of QOur Business And Related Information

We and our corresponding customer relationships are organized along men’s and women’s product lines. As a result
we have two reportable segments: (1)} men's accessories, consisting of belts, gifts, wallets and other small leather
goods, suspenders, and sporting goods; and (2) women's accessories, consisting of belts, small leather goods, and
gifts. General corporate expenses and depreciation and amortization related to assets recorded in our corporate
accounting records are allocated to each segment based on the respective segment’s asset base. Management
measures each segment based upon income or loss before income taxes utilizing accounting policies consistent in all
material respects with those described in Note 2. No inter-segment revenue is recorded.

The following presents operating and asset information by reportable segment (in thousands).

2008 2007
Net sales:
Men's accessories $118.949 $140,072
Women's accessories 30,308 55.737

8140257  §195,809

Operating (loss) income: o

Men's accessories $(31,652) $ 5305
Women's accessories (13,268) (1,370)
(44,920) 3,935

Interest expense @ (1,394) (1,226)
Other income © 237 550
{Loss) income before income taxes $(46.077) 33259
Depreciation and amortization:

Men's accessories $ 2,234 § 3,237

Women's accessories 968 1,478

i 320 p47l3

Capital expenditures:

Men's accessories % 101 8 770
Women's accessories - 77
Corporate 493 1,357

£ 594 52204

Total assets:

Men's accessories $ 53,730 $ 96,731
Women's accessories 15,792 29,085
Corporate 9.866 14,847

£ 79388 5140663

m Operating (loss) income consists of net sales less cost of goods sold and specifically identifiable and allocated
SG&A expenses.

Men’s accessories” fiscal 2008 operating loss includes charges of $28.4 million: goodwill impairment ($16.5
million); write-down of out-of-program and slow-moving inventory ($9.6 million); intangibles impairment
($1.3 million); and restructuring ($1 million).

2)

®) Women’s accessories’ fiscal 2008 operating loss includes charges of $9.2 million: write-down of out-of-

program and slow-moving inventory ($9.1 million); and restructuring ($0.1 million).
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@ Interest expense for fiscal 2008 includes $196,000 of costs related to a debt covenant waiver we received for

the first quarter and $176,000 related to costs previously capitalized for the credit facility with our previous
lenders.

) Other income includes interest, royalty income from corporate trade names, other income not specifically

identifiable with a segment and, in fiscai 2007, a $440,000 gain from the sale of a trademark.

The only customer accounting for 10% or more of our total net sales was Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (2008 - 41%; 2007 -
45%). Our annual purchases from one supplier of finished products and leather for belt manufacturing were $27.7
million in fiscal 2008 and $41.4 million in fiscal 2007,

Our net sales, (loss) income before income taxes, property and equipment, and total assets by geographic location
were (in thousands):

2008 2007
Net sales;
United States $137,753 $186,428
Canada 11,504 9,381

$149257  §195.809

(Loss) income before income taxes:

United States $(45,403) $ 2,671

Canada (674) 588
Property and equipment:

United States $ 31,620 $ 38,207

Canada 779 721

3 32,399 5 38928

Total assets:
United States $ 72,349 $131,518
Canada 7.039 9,145
£.79.388 $140.663

Our Canadian subsidiary is part of our men’s accessories segment. Its sales and income are converted to U.S. dollars
at the average currency exchange rate for each year. Property and equipment and total assets are converted at each
fiscal year end exchange rate.

Note 10 - Director Stock Deferral Plan

The 1995 Stock Deferral Plan for Non-Employee Directors (“Deferral Plan™) provides nonemployee directors with
an opportunity to defer receipt of their fees until a future date determined by each director. The payment of deferred
fees will ultimately be settled in shares of our common stock, or at our option, in cash based on the then current
market price of our stock. Amounts deferred are credited to an account we maintain in phantom stock units which
are equivalent in value to our common stock. The number of units is calculated by dividing the deferred cash
amount by the average closing price of our common stock for each day of the period during which such cash amount
would otherwise have been paid. We record compensation expense for the amount of the deferred fees (2008 - 50;
2007 - $27,000 for 2,482 units), dividend equivalents on the phantom stock units, and changes in the market value of
our common stock (2008 - $213,000 decrease; 2007 - $66,000 increase). At June 30, 2008, there were 26,198
shares of common stock available for settlement of future deferrals.

Note 11 - Preferred Stock

Without any further action by the holders of our common stock, our board of directors is authorized to approve and
determine the issuance of preferred stock, as well as the dividend rights, dividend rate, conversion or exchange
rights, voting rights, rights and terms of redemption, liquidation preferences and sinking fund terms of any series of
preferred stock, the number of shares constituting any series of preferred stock and the designation thereof. No
shares of preferred stock have been issued. Should preferred stock be issued, the rights, preferences, and privileges
of holders of our common stock would be made subject to the rights, preferences, and privileges of the preferred
stock.
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In October 2007, our Amended and Restated Rights Agreement expired and we effected an elimination of the
Series A Junior Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock.

Note 12 - Income Taxes

Significant components of our net deferred tax assets were (in thousands):
2008 2007
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory valuation $ 7,942 $2,787
Net operating loss carryover 3,533 -
Compensation plans 1,768 1,662
Uncertain tax positions 844 -
Depreciation 816 506
Accounts receivable valuation 202 187
Other net 74 -
15,179 5,142
Deferred tax liabilities:
Goodwill and other intangibles - (2,061)
Other net - _(16)
- (2,077
Valuation allowance (15,179) -
Net deferred tax asset s - $3,065
Significant components of our income tax provisions were (in thousands):
2008 2007
Current:
Federal (benefit) $(1,412) $1,748
State 235 304
Foreign 300 186
(877) 2,238
Deferred:
Federal 3,712 (850)
State 286 (63)
Uncertain tax positions 90 -
4,088 _{(913)
2 3211 $1.325
The federal statutory income tax rate reconciles to our effective income tax rate as follows:
2008 2007
Statutory rate {(34.0)% 34.0%
Deferred tax valuation 31.2 -
Goodwill impairment 8.7 -
State and foreign taxes net of federal tax benefit 1.1 3.8
Uncertain tax positions 0.2 -
Other net _{0.2) 29
—10%  401%

Our $9.4 million federal income tax net operating loss carryover expires in 2028. While it is reasonably possible a
current examination of state income tax returns for the fiscal years 1999 through 2003 involving uncertain tax
positions could be resolved within the next twelve months through settlement or administrative proceedings, the
potential impact cannot be estimated at this time. Otherwise, the majority of our state income tax returns are no
longer subject to examination for years before 2003. US federal income tax returns have been examined through
fiscal 2003 and Canadian income tax returns are no longer subject to examination for years before 2000.
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The following presents fiscal 2008 information about our unrecognized tax benefits of uncertain tax positions (in
thousands).

Unrecognized tax benefits:

July 1, 2007 $1,946
Decreases in prior years' tax positions (48
Settlements (26)
Statutes of limitations lapses (2)
June 30, 2008 1,870
Accrued interest and penalties 1.074
Uncertain tax positions liability $2.944
Unrecognized tax benefits affecting tax rate if recognized $1,353
Interest and penalty expense 5 221

Note 13 - (Loss) Earnings Per Share

Our basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share are computed as follows (in thousands except per share amounts):

2008 2007
Numerator for basic and diluted
(loss) earnings per share:
Net (loss) income $(49.288) 11234
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares outstanding 6,860 6,716
Contingently issuable shares 3 4
Denominator for basic (loss) earnings per share 6,863 6,720
Effect of dilutive share-based compensation - 171
Denominator for diluted (loss) earnings per share 6,863 5891
(L.oss) earnings per common share $ (7.18) $ 029
(Loss) earnings per common share assuming dilution $ 7.1y $ 028

Potentially dilutive securities at June 30, 2008 consisting of 532,732 stock options (exercise prices $5.63 to $17.56
per share}, 33,984 nonvested restricted stock shares not contingently issuable, and the 90,445 shares held by the
Benefit Restoration Plan Trust could have had an antidilutive effect on our loss per share for fiscal 2008.
Antidilutive stock options for 336,994 shares of our common stock (exercise prices $12.07 to $17.56 per share) are
excluded from our earnings per share calculations in fiscal 2007.
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ITEM 9 - CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A(T) - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls And Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2008 in alerting
them in a timely manner to material information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file with or submit
to the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act.

Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting
for our Company. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of our financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our control environment is the
foundation for our system of internal control over financial reporting and is an integral part of our Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics which sets the tone for our directors, officers, and employees. Our internal control over financial
reporting includes policies and procedures: (1) pertaining to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions of our assets; (2) providing reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of our financial statements in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of our directors and management; and (3} providing reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on
our financial statements.

In order to assess the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2008 as required by
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, which included testing based on the criteria set forth in
“Internal Control - Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the “COSO Framework™). Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect misstatements. In addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Based on that assessment, we determined that our internal control
over financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2008.

This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our
independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission that permit us to provide only management’s report in this Annual Report.

Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B - OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART II1

The information required by Items 10 through 14 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is included in our definitive
Proxy Statement relating to our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference. Such
information and its location in the Proxy Statement are as follows:
Caption In The
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.

Ite 2008 Proxy Statement
ITEM 10 - DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE “Proposal One: Election of Directors
OFFICERS AND CORPORATE — Biographical and Other Information Regarding Our
GOVERNANCE Nominees for Re-Election to Our Board of Directors”

“Proposal One: Election of Directors
— Biographical and Other Information Regarding Our
Continuing Directors”

“Executive Officers”

“Proposal One: Election of Directors
— Corporate Governance Information
— Code of Ethics”

“Proposal One: Election of Directors
— Corporate Governance Information
— Committees — Audit Committee”

“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance”

ITEM 11 - EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION “Executive Compensation”

“Proposal One: Election of Directors
— Director Compensation”

ITEM 12 - SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners™
CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
ITEM 13 - CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS “Proposal One: Election of Directors
AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND — Corporate Governance Information
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE — Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions
with Related Persons”
“Proposal One: Election of Directors
— Corporate Governance Information
— Director Independence”
ITEM 14 - PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING “Proposal Two: Ratification of Independent Auditor —
FEES AND SERVICES Background”
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PART 1V
ITEM 15 - EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements
The following financial statements are included in Item 8 of this Annual Report:

» Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2008 and 2007

» Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

» Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

Financial Statement Schedules
Financial statement schedules have been omitted because they either are not applicable or the required information is
included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Exhibits

The Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits required to be filed with this report is incorporated herein by
reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TANDY BRANDS ACCESSORIES, INC.
(Registrant)

/s/ 1.8.B. Jenkins
J.8.B. Jenkins
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: September 23, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Paosition Date
/s/1.8.B. Jenkins Director, Chairman of the Board, September 23, 2008
J.8.B. Jenkins President and
Chief Executive Officer

(principal executive officer)

/s/W. Grady Rosier Lead Independent Director September 23, 2008
W. Grady Rosier
/s/Dr. James F. Gaertner Director September 23, 2008
Dr. James F. Gaertner
/s/Roger R. Hemminghaus Director September 23, 2008
Roger R. Hemminghaus
fs/George C. Lake Director September 23, 2008
George C. Lake
/s/Colombe M. Nicholas Director September 23, 2008
Colombe M. Nicholas
/s/Gene Stallings Director September 23, 2008
Gene Stallings
/s/William D. Summitt Director September 23, 2008
William D, Summitt
/s/M.C. Mackey Chief Financial Officer September 23, 2008
M.C. Mackey (principal financial officer and

principal accounting officer)
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TANDY BRANDS ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
EXHIBIT INDEX
Incorporated by Reference
(if applicable)

:

Exhibit Number and Description Date File No. Exhibit

(3) Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

3.1  Certificate of Incorporation of Tandy
Brands Accessories, Inc. -1 11/02/90 33-37588 3.1

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of the
Certificate of Incorporation of Tandy
Brands Accessories, Inc. 8-K 11/02/07 0-18927 3.1

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Tandy
Brands Accessories, Inc., effective July
2007 8-K 71 3/07 0-18927 3.01

34  Amendment No. | to Amended and
Restated Bylaws of Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. 8-K 11/02/07 0-18927 32

(4) Instruments Defining the Rights of Security
Holders, Including Indentures

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate of
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. §-1 12/17/90 33-37588 42

4.2  Centificate of Elimination of Series A
Junior Participating Cumulative
Preferred Stock of Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. 8-K 10/24/07 0-18927 3.1

43  Credit Agreement by and between
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. and
Comerica Bank dated as of February 12,
2008 10-Q 2/14/08 0-18927 43

(10) Material Contracts

10.1 Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.
Benefit Restoration Plan and related
Trust Agreement and Amendments Nos.
1 and 2 thereto* 10-K 9/25/97 0-18927 10.14

102 Amendment No. 3 to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. Benefit Restoration
Plan, effective as of July 1, 2003* 10-K 9/23/03 0-18927 10.32

10.3  Succession Agreement, dated July 1,
2001, between Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. and Chase Texas, N.A.
(the Former Trustee) and Comerica Bank
— Texas (the Trustee), relating to the
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. Benefit
Restoration Plan* 10-K 9/23/03 0-18927 10.34

10.4  Form of Indemnification
Agreement between Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. and each of its
Directors* S-1 12/17/90 33-37588 10.16

10.5  Form of Indemnification Agreement
between Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.
and each of its Officers* 8-1 12/17/90 33-37588 10.17




TANDY BRANDS ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
EXHIBIT INDEX
Incorporated by Reference
(if applicable)
Date File No. Exhibit

5

Exhibit Number and Description

10.6  Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.
Non-Qualified Formula Stock Option
Plan for Non-Employee Directors* 5-8 2/10/94 33-75114 28.1

10.7  Amendment No. 4 to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. Nonqualified Formula

Stock Option Plan For Non-Employee
Directors* 10-Q 5/10/02 (0-18927 [0.39

10.8  Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.
Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for
Non-Employee Directors* S-8 2/10/94 33-75114 28.3

10.9  Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. 1995
Stock Deferral Plan for Non-Employee
Directors* S-8 6/03/96 33-08579 99.1

10.10  Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. 1997
Employee Stock Option Plan* S-8 12/12/97 33342211 99.1

10.11  Amendment No. 2 to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. 1997 Employee Stock
Option Plan* 10-Q 5/10/02 0-18927 10.38

10.12  Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.
Employees Investment Plan, as
Amended and Restated effective July 1,
2000* 10-K 9/26/00 0-18927 10.39

10.13  Mid-Market Trust Agreement, dated
August 19, 2001, between Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. and State Street Bank
and Trust Company, relating to the
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.
Employees Investment Plan* 10-K 9/23/03 0-18927 10.28

10.14  Amendments Nos. 1-3 to the Tandy
Brands Accessories, Inc. Employees

Investment Plan, as Amended and
Restated effective July 1, 2000* 10-K 9/23/03 0-18927 1031

10.15 Succession Agreement, dated June 20,
2002, between Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. and Comerica Bank —
Texas, (the Trustee), relating to the
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.
Employees Investment Plan* 10-K 9/23/03 0-18927 10.35

10.16  Amendment No. 4 to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. Employees Investment
Plan, dated December 22, 2003* 10-Q 2/12/04 0-18927 10.38

10.17  Nongualified Stock Option Agreement
for Non-Employee Directors, dated
October 16, 2001, by and between
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. and Dr.
James F. Gaertner* S-8 5/15/02 33-88276 10.2
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10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27
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10.29

TANDY BRANDS ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit Number and Description

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement
for Non-Employee Directors, dated
Octaober 16, 2001, by and between
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. and
Gene Stallings*

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement
for Non-Employee Directors, dated
October 16, 2001, by and between
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. and
Roger R. Hemminghaus*

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement
for Non-Employee Directors, dated
October 16, 2001, by and between
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. and
Colombe M. Nicholas*

Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. 2002
Omnibus Plan*

Form of Non-Employee Director
Nongqualified Stock Option Agreement
pursuant to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Ine. 2002 Omnibus Plan*

Form of Employee Nonqualified Stock
Option Agreement pursuant to the
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. 2002
Omnibus Plan*

Form of Non-Employee Director
Restricted Stock Award Agreement
pursuant to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. 2002 Omnibus Plan*

Form of Employee Restricted Stock
Award Agreement pursuant to the Tandy
Brands Accessories, Inc. 2002 Omnibus
Plan*

Form of Severance Agreement between
Tandy Brands Accessortes, Inc. and
certain Executive Officers*

Office Lease Agreement, dated January
31, 2604, between Koll Bren Fund VI,
LP and Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.
relating to the corporate office

Acknowledgement and Release
Agreement between Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. and J.S.B. Jenkins
relating to the termination of the
Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan*

Amendments Nos. 5-6 to the Tandy
Brands Accessories, Inc, Employees
Investment Plan, as Amended and
Restated effective July 1, 2000*

EXHIBIT INDEX
Incorporated by Reference
(if applicable)

Form Date File No. Exhibit
S-8 5/15/02 33-88276 10.4
S-8 5/15/02 33-88276 10.5
S-8 5/15/02 33-88276 10.6
10-Q 11/12/02 0-18927 10.24
10-K 9/23/04 0-18927 10.39
10-K 9/23/04 0-18927 10.40
10-K 5/23/04 0-18927 10.41
10-K 9/23/04 0-18927 10.42
10-K 9/23/03 0-18927 10.33
10-Q 2/12/04 0-18927 10.36
8-K 8/22/05 0-18927 10.45
10-Q 5/11/06 0-18927 10.44
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Incorporated by Reference
(if applicable)
Exhibit Number and Description Form Date File No. Exhibit
1030  Amendment No. 2 to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. 1995 Stock Deferral
Plan for Non-Employee Directors* 10-K 9/22/06 0-18927 10.35

10.31  Credit Agreement by and between
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. and
Comerica Bank dated as of February 12,
2008 10-Q 2/14/08 0-18927 10.31

1032  Amendment No. 4 to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. Benefit Restoration
Plan, dated July 1, 2001* 10-Q 11/14/06 0-18927 10.37

10.33  Form of 2006 Performance Unit Award
Agreement pursuant to the Tandy
Brands Accessories, Inc. 2002 Omnibus
Plan* 10-Q 2/14/07 0-18927 10.37

10.34  Amendment No. 7 to the Tandy Brands
Accessories, Inc. Employees Investment
Plan, effective as of January 1, 2006* 10-Q 2/14/07 0-18927 10.38

10.35  Amendment No. | to the Tandy Brands
Accessortes, [nc. 2002 Omnibus
Plan* 10-K 9/21/07 0-18927 10.38

10,36  Settlement Agreement by and among
Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.,
Golconda Capital Management, LLC,
Golconda Capital Portfolio, LP and each
of William D. Summitt and Jedd M.
Flowers 8K 10/29/07 0-18927 10.1

1037  Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. Stock
Purchase Program {(As Amended And
Restated Effective December 1, 2005)* 10-Q 11/19/G7 0-18927 10.40

10.38  Fiscal 2009 Compensation
Summaries* ** N/A N/A N/A N/A

(21)  Subsidiaries of the Registrant

21.1 List of Subsidiaries** N/A N/A N/A N/A
(23) Consents of Experts and Counsel

231 Consent of Emst & Young LLP** N/A N/A N/A N/A
(31) Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14{a) Certifications

31.1 Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-
14(a)/15d-14(a) (Chief Executive

Officer)** N/A N/A N/A N/A

31.2 Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-
14(a)/15d-14(a) (Chief Financial
Officer)** N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Incorporated by Reference
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Exhibit Number and Description Form Date File No. Exhibit
(32) Section 1350 Certifications
32.1 Section 1350 Certifications {Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer)** N/A N/A N/A N/A

* Management contract or compensatory plan
** Filed herewith




Exhibit 31.1
Certification Pursuant To
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
(Chief Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, J.5.B. Jenkins, certify that;
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misieading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s} and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Ewvaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
interna! control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 23, 2008 {s/ J.S.B. Jenkins
J.S.B. Jenkins
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
(Chief Financial Officer)

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
1, M.C. Mackey, certify that:
1. [ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15({)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other ¢employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 23, 2008 /sf M.C. Mackey
M.C. Mackey
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
' Section 1350 Certification
{Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Tandy Brands Accessories, Inc. (the “Company”) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), we, J.8.B. Jenkins and M.C. Mackey, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively,
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(i)} The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: September 23, 2008 s/ J.5.B. Jenkins
J.S5.B. Jenkins
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ M.C. Mackey
M.C. Mackey
Chief Financial Officer
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